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AECOM Australia 
Level 8, 17 York Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 

98 Victoria Street TAREE NSW 2430 
PO Box 440 TAREE NSW 2430 

Ph: (02) 6591 3526 
Fax: (02) 6552 2816 

e-mail: jaimee.vlastuin@lpma.nsw.gov.au 

 
 Our Ref:  07/2241 

Your Ref: ................  

25 June 2010 

 
   

 

 

 
Attention: Natasha Ridler 
 

Re: Request for comment – Rainbow Beach Project Application 07_0001 

 

I am writing in response to your letter dated 9 June 2010 regarding the above proposal, and 
offering the opportunity for the Land and Property Management Authority (LPMA) to 
comment on the project. 
 
Crown land managed by the LPMA exists directly to the east of the site forming a band 
parallel to the coastline, bordering Lot 5 DP 25886. This land forms part of the Hastings 
Regional Crown Reserve R1011448 for Future Public Requirements notified 31 March 2006. 
Regional Crown Reserves have been established to aggregate Crown land into larger 
precincts, allowing holistic planning as well as balanced and sustainable management. 
Regional Crown Reserves allow for multiple purpose usage, generating improvements in the 
environmental, economic and social fabric of the area. In designing major development 
projects, any potential impacts the development may have on the current/future use, 
management or amenity of any Crown land, as defined by the Crown Lands Act, 1989 that is 
directly affected by the proposal should be considered.  
 
Crown roads previously existed within Lot 1232. According to initial investigations, these 
Crown roads have recently been closed, creating Lots 1-4 DP 1150758, which have since 
been purchased by the adjoining landowner. Hence the LPMA has no further interest in this 
land. 
 
From the information provided, the LPMA has the following comments regarding the project: 
  

 Crown land identification – the assessment should identify the location and status of 
any Crown land directly affected by the project. 
 

 SEPP 26 Littoral Rainforest – the site adjoins Crown lands containing SEPP 26, 
which has recognised conservation and environmental protection values. The SEPP 
26 buffer would impact upon Lot 5. Mapped key habitat and the Lake Cathie / 
Camden Head Regional Corridor also exists, impacting upon both the project site and 
Crown land. Adverse impacts of the development on Crown land vegetation are to be 
avoided. 
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 Beach access – the proposed development will create public access demands to 
Rainbow Beach through the Crown Reserve. According to aerial photography, a 
single access track to the beach currently exists from Lot 5, through the Crown 
reserve within the SEPP 26. The LPMA requests that the project includes strategies 
to safeguard and protect this valuable asset by formalising this access track 
(preferably for pedestrian access only). The track can be formalised by a commercial 
licence from the LPMA. Any work on the track may not be carried out without the 
issue of a licence from the LPMA prior to the commencement of work. The proponent 
is responsible for all environmental assessments and approvals required. 
Environmental assessments must consider aspects such as vegetation attributes, 
erosion, weed invasion and mitigation techniques to minimise impacts upon native 
vegetation. Any additional track that may be proposed would require strong 
justification and reviewed on merit by the LPMA. Any activity is not to impinge on the 
Crown reserve in any way, including vegetation removal, weed removal and 
rehabilitation works, without prior approval from the LPMA. 
 

 Fencing – to reduce impacts on the reserve, the boundary between the development 
and the Crown reserve is to be fenced allowing access only to a formalised track. 

 

 Storm water runoff – storm water can significantly impact upon Crown land and 
downstream environments by causing erosion, sedimentation, altering nutrient levels, 
increasing pollution, spreading weeds and exacerbating flooding. These can degrade 
natural systems, increase the Authorities land management costs and limit current 
and future uses/values of Crown land. Stormwater / runoff should be managed so it 
does not adversely impact upon the adjoining Crown land. The LPMA does not 
support direct beach outfall. Stormwater measures should be considered as part of a 
Stormwater Management Plan, with a focus on on-site measures such as retention 
and treatment for pollution removal. This plan should include an assessment of 
potential impacts on the adjoining Crown land, in particular the SEPP 26. 

 

 Bushfire – Requirements under Planning for Bushfire Protection 2006 for Asset 
Protection Zones to be entirely within the development and not impact on the 
adjoining Crown land.  
 

 
For any further enquiries, please do not hesitate to contact myself on the above details.  
 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
Jaimee Vlastuin 
Environmental Officer 
Land Management  
Crown Lands Division, Taree 
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